
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public except 
by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a public meeting 

even if not advertised or listed on the agenda. 

 
 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, May 15, 2018 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 204 
 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

Zoning Public Hearing 
4. Request by Teleworld Solutions, agent for Lamar Billboard/Sprint Spectrum, LP for a telecommunications 

tower conditional use at 1010 Greensboro Road; Presently zoned C-1 [Map 103, Parcel 005] (staff-P&D) 
5. Request by Nathan Mason to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from AG-1 to R-1 [Map 033, Parcel 052] 

(staff-P&D) 
6. Request by Connie Covington to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from AG-1 to R-1 [Map 074, Parcel 052] 

(staff-P&D) 
7. Request by William Pettit, agent for Mary Katherine Lucius, Executrix to rezone 1.24 acres at 883 Harmony 

Road from C-1 to C-2 [Map 102D, Parcel 039] (staff-P&D) 
8. Request by Robert H. Blount, agent for Jack Pierce to rezone 3.71 acres at 906 Crooked Creek Road from AG-

1 to R-2 [Map 110, Part of Parcel 060] (staff-P&D) 
 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 
10. Approval of Agenda 
11. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Work Session (staff-CC) 

12. Appointments to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 
13. Authorization for Chairman to sign Agreement between Putnam County and Piedmont Water Company (SH) 
 

Reports/Announcements 
14. County Manager Report 
15. County Attorney Report 
16. Commissioner Announcements 
 

Closing 
17. Adjournment 

  

1



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
4. Request by Teleworld Solutions, agent for Lamar Billboard/Sprint Spectrum, LP for a 

telecommunications tower conditional use at 1010 Greensboro Road; Presently zoned C-1 [Map 103, 

Parcel 005] (staff-P&D) 

  

2



Request by Teleworld Solutions, agent for Lamar Billboard/Sprint Spectrum, LP for 
a telecommunication tower conditional use at 1010 Greensboro Road.  Presently 

zoned C-1. [Map 103, Parcel 005]. *   
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use to add an antenna/equipment for a 

wireless signal onto an existing billboard.  By qualifying a billboard as an existing 
structure, the billboard will fall under Section 58-5 (3)(e) of the Putnam County 

Code of Ordinances which states: “antennas on existing structures are allowed but 
are subject to the conditions of Section 58-5(3)(d).”  The applicants are proposing 
to utilize a new technology called Small Cells which involves the installation of a 2-

foot-tall antenna, 2 small equipment boxes and a dish.  The height of the existing 
billboard with the proposed antenna extension is approximately 58 feet.  The site 

has an existing power source and the facility will be disguised.  Therefore the 
proposed antenna addition meets the requirements of 58-5(3)(d) which states: 
“Antennas attached to buildings in the C-1, C-2 and C-3 districts; provided, 

however, that antennas will add no more than 20 feet to the height of the 
building/structure and will be installed on any building/structure in such a way as to 

minimize the visual impact of the installation from public streets to the absolute 
minimum; to minimize visual impacts of the antenna from habitable living areas of 

residential units which directly face the antenna within 100 feet horizontal distance; 
if back-up equipment is installed on any roof, the back-up facility shall be low lying 
and set back or otherwise located to minimize visibility, no building mounted 

antenna shall extend more than four horizontal feet from the building.”  In addition, 
the nearest telecommunication tower located at 341 Wards Chapel Road is more 

than 1,200 feet way.  This request meets both the exceptions as provided in 
Section 58-5 (3) (e) and the conditions as stated in Section 58-5 (3) (d) of the 
Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  Therefore, this request meets the minimum 

requirements and conditions of Chapter 58 as referenced above.  In addition, the 
proposed 2-foot antenna/equipment shall have no adverse effect on this corridor.  I 

see no adverse effect the proposed use would have on the adjacent properties, 
roads, or highways.  
 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a telecommunication tower conditional use 
permit at 1010 Greensboro Road.     

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
 

Present:  James Marshall, Jr., Chairman, Frederick Ward, Tommy Brundage, John 
Langley 

3



Staff:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden 
Absent:  Alan Oberdeck 

 
Request by Teleworld Solutions, agent for Lamar Billboard/Sprint Spectrum, LP for 

a telecommunication tower conditional use at 1010 Greensboro Road.  Presently 
zoned C-1. [Map 103, Parcel 005]. *  Mr. John Milisitz represented this request.  He 
stated that the applicant is requesting to install a lattice antenna on top of an 

existing billboard.  Mr. Milisitz explained how the traditional technology was 
changing and this antenna was part of the new small cell technology.  Traditional 

sites require 10 to 12 antennas but this site will require one that is two feet tall 
with a box that is 3x3 instead of a 10x12.  He stated he chose the location because 
of the high traffic area, as well as the billboard being existing.  The antenna will be 

placed three feet above the billboard.  The proposed location would provide 
immediate coverage to Greensboro Road and Old Phoenix Road.  Mr. Langley asked 

about the range transmission and reception rate for the unit in question.  He stated 
that there was an attachment within the packet that shows the coverage area.  Mr. 
Milisitz commented that with the small cell technology, the goal is to have the 

antenna as high as possible so the coverage will be as expansive as possible.  He 
added that before this new technology multiple towers would have to be 

constructed, now the device can be placed on existing billboards.  Mr. Langley 
asked which carrier would be utilizing the structure.  Mr. Milisitz stated it would be 

Sprint.  Mr. Adam Nelson, Putnam County Attorney, stated that after reviewing the 
request he thought it was important that the commission was aware that we have 
an ordinance that sets a protective corridor along State Route 44 with respect to 

telecommunication towers being put in place.  There is some ambiguity within that 
code section that creates the corridor.  There is an exception with respect to this 

corridor.  In the agenda packet, there is a picture that provides the schematics of 
the request.  He stated the tower itself would be obscured from vision, except for 
the top portion of the sign.  The ordinance states that there are specific exceptions 

for monopoles but also exceptions for alternative tower structures of stealth design 
which he believes refers to antennas that are designed to blend in with the 

surroundings or antennas of this making.  He stated we also have certain provisions 
regarding attaching to existing structures.  He stated there has been some requests 
from citizens as well as this body having to look at request for placing antennas in 

this corridor.  He stated it was not a crystal-clear picture drawn by the ordinances, 
however, it does appear that it would be reasonable to expect that a design of this 

nature that would be on an existing structure and does have a stealth design would 
be appropriate.  He stated as a board it is important to be consistent.  If the 
decision for the conditional use is granted, then it would be setting precedence on 

the standards that are not in place now by your actions.  Mr. Marshall asked if the 
ordinance needs to be reviewed and changes made.  Mr. Nelson stated that the 

technology is going in a different direction than the current ordinance in place.  He 
stated the technology has evolved from big monopole structures everywhere to 
structures more like what was being presented.  If that is the case it might be time 

to discuss if the code is what is wanted or if it needs to be defined better.  Mr. Ward 
asked for guidance from the attorney on the request.  Mr. Nelson stated he thought 

it was a reasonable interpretation of the ordinance and his view was that he 
thought this was what the ordinance was going after.  He stated the important 

4



aspect to him was defining this request as the stealth design they are intending.  
Ms. Jackson stated they are allowing it under Section 58-5(3) - antennas attached 

to buildings or structures.  Mr. Nelson stated that code of ordinances anticipated 
there being a freestanding antenna or something on top of a building, but putting 

one on a billboard was not anticipated.  He added that it is important that the board 
be consistent in what they do and if they approve this it will be in line with what 
they think would meet that definition.  Mr. Milisitz stated that they choose this 

location due to it is the only existing structure in the area with the height 
requirement that they needed.  

 
Staff recommendation is for a telecommunication tower conditional use at 1010 
Greensboro Road.  No one spoke in opposition to this request. 

 
Mr. Ward made a motion for approval for a telecommunication tower conditional 

use at 1010 Greensboro Road and Mr. Brundage seconded.  All approved.  
 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
5. Request by Nathan Mason to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from AG-1 to R-1 [Map 033, Parcel 

052] (staff-P&D) 

  

22



Request by Nathan Mason to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from AG-1 to R-
1. [Map 033, Parcel 052]. *    

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 9.49 acres from AG-1 to R-1 to subdivide for 
family use.  The minimum lot size in the AG-1 district is 20 acres so to subdivide 

the property it must be rezoned to a conforming zoning district.  Halls Road divides 
this property.  The applicant is proposing to subdivide this property equally between 

his two siblings by creating (2) 3.57-acre parcels and (2) 1.175-acre parcels.  The 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use indicates the future land use as Rural 
Residential which meets the intended land use of Residential.  This parcel is 

surrounded by adjacent AG-1 parcels.  Therefore, the proposed R-1 zoning will 
have minimal impact on Halls Road or adjacent properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 9.49 acres from AG-1 to R-1 with 
the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying 

and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam 
County Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Thursday, May 3, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 
117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
 

Present:  James Marshall, Jr., Chairman, Frederick Ward, Tommy Brundage, John 
Langley 

Staff:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden 
Absent:  Alan Oberdeck 
 

Request by Nathan Mason to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from AG-1 to R-
1. [Map 033, Parcel 052]. *  Mr. Nathan Mason represented this request.  Mr. 

Mason stated that he purchased this property for his children to build houses on.  
He stated that he has had a survey done which will equally divide the property 
between the two siblings.  There will be (2) 3.57-acre parcels and (2) 1.175-acre 

parcels.  Mr. Ward stated that he had visited the property and has no problems 
with the request.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from 
AG-1 to R-1 with the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-
165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  No one spoke in opposition to 

this request. 
 

23



Mr. Ward made a motion for approval to rezone 9.49 acres at 142 Halls Road from 
AG-1 to R-1 with the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-
165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, and Mr. Langley seconded.  

All approved.  
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. Request by Connie Covington to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from AG-1 to R-1 [Map 074, 

Parcel 052] (staff-P&D) 

  

33



Request by Connie Covington to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from AG-1 
to R-1. [Map 074, Parcel 052]. *   

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 5 acres from AG-1 to R-1 to subdivide the 
property into (2) 2.5-acre parcels for family use.  The minimum lot size in the AG-1 

district is 20 acres so to subdivide the property it must be rezoned to a conforming 
zoning district.  The applicant wants to subdivide the parcel into (2) 2.5-acre 

parcels in order to put a residence in near proximity for her elderly parents.  The 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use indicates the future land use as Rural which 
meets the intended land use of Residential.  This parcel is surrounded by adjacent 

AG-1 parcels.  Therefore, the proposed R-1 zoning will have minimal impact on 
Denham Road or adjacent properties. 

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5 acres from AG-1 to R-1 with the 
following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Thursday, May 3, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 
117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
 

Present:  James Marshall, Jr., Chairman, Frederick Ward, Tommy Brundage, John 
Langley 

Staff:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden 
Absent:  Alan Oberdeck 
 

Request by Connie Covington to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from AG-1 
to R-1. [Map 074, Parcel 052]. *  Mrs. Connie Covington represented this 

request.  Mrs. Covington stated that she had an older manufactured home on the 
property that recently caught on fire.  The fire damage was extensive and she is 
going to replace it with a newer home.   She is requesting to rezone and subdivide 

this property.  Ms. Jackson clarified that there is an existing structure on the 
property and Ms. Covington is requesting to put another structure on the property, 

however to do so she must subdivide the property because the ordinance does not 
allow two structures on this property.   
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from 
AG-1 to R-1 with the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-

34



165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  No one spoke in opposition to 
this request. 

 
Mr. Ward made a motion for approval to rezone 5 acres at 122 Denham Road from 

AG-1 to R-1 with the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned 
upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-
165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, and Mr. Brundage seconded.  

All approved.  
 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. Request by William Pettit, agent for Mary Katherine Lucius, Executrix to rezone 1.24 acres at 883 

Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2 [Map 102D, Parcel 039] (staff-P&D) 

  

43



Request by William Pettit, agent for Mary Katherine Lucius, Executrix to 
rezone 1.24 acres at 883 Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 102D, Parcel 

039]. *  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 1.24 acres from C-1 to C-2 for a boat sales 

business.  He would like to move and expand their current business, B&A Marine 
which is across the street from this property.  The present use of the property does 

not allow outside storage and it must be rezoned to a zoning district that will 
comply with the ordinance.  The existing building on the property, was used as a 
restaurant, which has been vacant for several years, and will be torn down.  A new 

building will be constructed in its place.  The applicant is proposing to landscape the 
property and install asphalt up to the new building.  The Comprehensive Plan 

Future Land Use indicates the future land use as Commercial which meets the 
intended land use of Commercial.  There is precedence set with several surrounding 
parcels already being zoned C-2 for commercial use along this corridor, therefore, I 

see no adverse effect the proposed use would have on the adjacent properties, 
roads, or highways.    

         
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.24 acres from C-1 to C-2 with the 

following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 
the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 

Thursday, May 3, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 
117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
 

Present:  James Marshall, Jr., Chairman, Frederick Ward, Tommy Brundage, John 
Langley 

Staff:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden 
Absent:  Alan Oberdeck 
 

Request by William Pettit, agent for Mary Katherine Lucius, Executrix to 
rezone 1.24 acres at 883 Harmony Road from C-1 to C-2. [Map 102D, Parcel 

039]. *  Ashley Goodroe, Coldwell Banker, represented this request.  Ms. 
Goodroe stated applicant is requesting to rezone this property from C-1 to C-2 to 
relocate an existing business.  The existing structure on the property was formerly 

Shuckers restaurant which has been closed for several years.  She added that B&A 
Marine sales is proposing to relocate their business from across the street to this 

location.  The business will sell lawn movers, atvs and such.  The existing building 
will be demolished and replaced with a new building which will be a great 

44



improvement to the property.  Ms. Goodroe stated that there are adjacent C-2 
parcels behind this property and down Harmony Road.  Mr. Langley stated that he 

had visited the property with Mrs. Pennamon.  He stated that he has no problems 
with the request given the area has been developed so much for business as it is.    

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 1.24 acres from C-1 to C-2 with the 
following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County 
Code of Ordinances.  No one spoke in opposition to this request. 

 
Mr. Langley made a motion for approval to rezone 1.24 acres at 883 Harmony Road 
from C-1 to C-2 with the following condition: (1) this rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-
165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, and Mr. Ward seconded.  All 

approved. 
 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Request by Robert H. Blount, agent for Jack Pierce to rezone 3.71 acres at 906 Crooked Creek Road 

from AG-1 to R-2 [Map 110, Part of Parcel 060] (staff-P&D) 

  

57



Request by Robert H. Blount, agent for Jack Pierce to rezone 3.71 acres at 906 
Crooked Creek Road from AG-1 to R-2. [Map 110, Part of Parcel 060]. *    

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 3.71 acres from AG-1 to R-2 to combine with 
four adjacent parcels that he owns.  He is purchasing the 3.71 acres from an 

adjacent property owner who owns the parcel behind him.  The minimum lot size in 
the AG-1 district is 20 acres so to subdivide the property it must be rezoned to a 

conforming zoning district.  In addition, the parcel in question would be landlocked 
and must be combined with the other four parcels to prevent this scenario.  The 
applicant is proposing to combine this parcel with Map 110B Parcel 125, Map 114A 

Parcel 004, Map 114A Parcel 005 and Map 114A Parcel 006 creating one tract.  The 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use indicates the future land use as Rural 

Residential which meets the intended land use of Residential.  The adjacent 
properties that abut this parcel are R-2 and AG-1 parcels.  Therefore, I see no 
adverse effect the proposed use would have on the adjacent properties, roads, or 

highways. 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 3.71 acres from AG-1 to R-2 with 
the following conditions: (1) the 3.71 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 110B Parcel 125, Map 114A Parcel 004, Map 114A Parcel 005 and Map 
114A Parcel 006, (2) and the 3.71 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone 
parcel, (3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the 

recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 

 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 

 
The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, May 3, 2018 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 31024. 
 

Present:  James Marshall, Jr., Chairman, Frederick Ward, Tommy Brundage, John 
Langley 
Staff:  Lisa Jackson, Karen Pennamon, Jonathan Gladden 

Absent:  Alan Oberdeck 
 

Request by Robert H. Blount, agent for Jack Pierce to rezone 3.71 acres at 906 
Crooked Creek Road from AG-1 to R-2. [Map 110, Part of Parcel 060]. *  Mr. 
Robert Blount represented this request.  Mr. Blount stated that he is requesting to 

rezone 3.71 acres at 906 Crooked Creek road from AG-1 to R-2.  He added that he 
has resided at his current residence for 30 years and is looking to downsize to a 

smaller home.  He owns several lots across the street from where he lives and 
would like to combine four of his parcels with 3.71 acres which he intends to 

58



purchase from his friend, Jack Pierce.  Mr. Pierce’s property is located directly 
behind his property; however, this property is zoned AG-1.  He stated that the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances require that he rezone the 3.71 acres that he 
wants to purchase and combine with the R-2 parcels he owns.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 3.71 acres from AG-1 to R-2 with 
the following conditions: (1) the 3.71 acres must be combined with the adjacent 

parcels: Map 110B Parcel 125, Map 114A Parcel 004, Map 114A Parcel 005 and Map 
114A Parcel 006, (2) the 3.71 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, 

(3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of 
the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances.  No one spoke in opposition to this request.  

 
Mr. Ward made a motion for approval to rezone 3.71 acres from AG-1 to R-2 with 

the following conditions: (1) the 3.71 acres must be combined with the adjacent 
parcels: Map 110B Parcel 125, Map 114A Parcel 004, Map 114A Parcel 005 and Map 
114A Parcel 006, (2) the 3.71 acres cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel, 

(3) this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of 
the plat as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances, and Mr. Brundage seconded.  All approved.  
 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - May 4, 2018 Work Session (staff-CC) 

  

70



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, May 4, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, May 4, 2018 at approximately 9:00 

AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, 

Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by Rev. Daniel Lowery, Lakeside Baptist Church. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hersey. 

 
4. Special Presentation - Safe Boating Proclamation (TA) 

A proclamation was presented to Mr. David Hogan of the U.S. Coast Guard Auxiliary supporting 

the goals of the North American Safe Boating Campaign and proclaiming May 19-26, 2018, as 

National Safe Boating Week and the start of the year-round effort to promote safe boating. (Copy 

of proclamation made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

71



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Mr. Don Cottrell commented on pot holes at the corner of Long Shoals Road and Highway 16. 

 
6. Approval of Agenda 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

Agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 
b. Approval of Minutes - April 6, 2018 Executive Session (staff-CC) 
c. Approval of Minutes - April 27, 2018 Work Session (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

Consent Agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison 

and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 
8. Approval of 2018 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Fin) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to approve the 

2018 Budget Amendment #2.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, 

and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of amendment made a part of the 

minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance letter to MGRC regarding 

electronic forms, signatures, and payments (TA) 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to authorize 

the Chairman to sign a Technical Assistance letter to MGRC regarding electronic forms, 

signatures, and payments on the county website.  Motion carried with Commissioners 

Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of letter made a 

part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
10. Approval of change to the May 15, 2018 BOC meeting location or date (staff-CC) 

Chairman Hersey explained that Advance Voting will be held in our regular meeting room 

(#203) May 14-18, 2018.   

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to move the 

May 15, 2018 BOC meeting to the Commissioner’s Conference room (#204).  Motion 

carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey 

voting yes. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

72



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

11. Approval of 2018-2019 Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 
a. Medical (low and high plans) 
b. Dental 
c. Vision 
d. Basic Life 
e. Voluntary Term Life and AD&D 
f. Voluntary Short Term and Long Term Disability 
g. Voluntary AFLAC 
h. Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) 
i. ShawHankins Advantage Benefits Package 

County Manager Van Haute explained that the insurance renewal increase was only 1.5% and 

recommended remaining with the current benefits.  It also expressed his appreciation for the gym 

and wellness program saying we are seeing returns quicker than expected. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve 

BCBS GA Alternate Low Plan #OAP12 2.5K/30 and High Plan #OAP5 3.5K/30 and renew 

the current Dental, Vision, Basic Life, Voluntary Term Life & AD&D, Voluntary Short 

Term & Long Term Disability, and the HRA and approve the ShawHankins Advantage 

Benefit Package increase from $6.24 month to $6.30 month and the addition of Voluntary 

AFLAC benefits package offered by ShawHankins.  Motion carried with Commissioners 

Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of benefit plan 

documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

  
12. Review of the Regional TSPLOST projects (SH) 

Chairman Hersey reviewed the Regional TSPLOST projects with a PowerPoint presentation.  No 

action was taken. (Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages 

__________ to __________.) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

• Thanked board of renewing insurance 

• Trash solutions are being looked at-might possibly get some four wheelers and hire 

people to pick it up 

• Social media presence is being increased by all departments 

• Farmers and Merchants Bank is the only local bank that can handle the $7-7.5M loan for 

road projects 

 

14. County Attorney Report 

County Attorney Fleming requested an Executive Session regarding litigation. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

73



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: reminded all of the PDA Lunch & Learn at PCHS on Tuesday, May 8, 

2018 from 10 am – 1 pm – the subject is workforce resources for local businesses 

 

Commissioner Foster: invited all the Harmony Community Association charity event following 

the Veterans Wall ceremony on Memorial Day-BBQ plates will be sold for $9 

 

Commissioner Addison: none 

 

Chairman Hersey: none 

 
Executive Session 

15.1 Motion to enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4, if necessary, for 

Personnel, Litigation, or Real Estate 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Brown, to enter 

Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Litigation.  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 10:19 a.m. 

 

 

15.2 Motion to reopen meeting and Execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed 

portion of the meeting 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to reopen the 

meeting and execute an Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book 

page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 11:44 a.m. 

 

 

15.3 Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

County Attorney Fleming reported that legal matter was discussed with no final action taken. 

 

15.4. County Attorney Report continued 

County Attorney Fleming reported on the Tax Commissioner and school property tax collection 

fee issue, advising that state law says we must collect 2.5% and that it can only be changed by 

local legislation.  The Tax Commissioner has begun charging the 2.5% and will continue at that 

rate until it is changed.   He and County Manager Van Haute estimated the appropriate collection 

fee could be around 2/3 of the cost of the Tax Commissioner’s office. 

 

74



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 
Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Brown, Foster, and Addison and 

Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:57 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

75



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the May 4, 2018 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

76



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Work Session 

Minutes 

Friday, May 4, 2018 ◊ Following 9:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 204 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met for a Work Session on May 4, 2018 at 

approximately 12:14 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 204, Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called the work session to order at approximately 12:14 p.m.  He explained 

that a work session doesn’t usually have public input, but since the newspaper advertised this as 

a public hearing he will treat it as a hybrid of the two types and will first have discussion among 

commissioners and at the end ask members of the public to write down and submit any questions 

or comments. (Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Work Session 
2. MOU between Putnam County and Piedmont Water Company 

Chairman Hersey explained there were two goals: to supply quality water to all of Putnam 

County where it is financially feasible and to use as much water as possible from Sinclair Water 

Authority in order to reduce cost to Putnam County and its citizens.  He further explained that 

the issue at hand is that he and Commissioner Foster met with Piedmont to discuss providing 

higher quality water to parts of Putnam County and a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

was developed (copies of the MOU were distributed).  From that MOU the County Attorney 

77



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

May 4, 2018 

drafted an agreement (copies of the draft agreement were distributed).  Chairman Hersey advised 

that the purpose of the work session is to answer questions related to the draft agreement and the 

willingness of the board to enter into the agreement.  He also distributed copies of an invoice 

from Sinclair Water Authority (SWA) and a Net Revenue worksheet based on the proposed 

agreement.  Commissioner Addison expressed concerns with using a fixed rate for billing 

Piedmont.  He distributed copies of a mock bill using a fixed credit to Piedmont instead of a 

fixed cost. (Copies of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ 

to __________.) 

 

Comments and questions were received from Mr. Bill Sharp, Mr. Billy Webster, and Mr. 

Tommy Jefferson. 

 

No final action was taken. 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 
Chairman Hersey adjourned the work session at approximately 2:30 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

78



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
12. Appointments to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

  

79



Applicants for Putnam Development Authority                                                                 5/8/2018

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT BACKGROUND

APPLICATION 

DATE

Billy W. Sharp 103 Bulloch Hall Drive 3

Retired; B.S. in Chemistry; Math 

& Physics from University of the 

Cumberlands; studied chemical 

engineering at University of 

Tennessee; Chairman of PDA 4 

years; served on PDA 9 years; 

Board of Equalization 10 years; 

Election Poll Manager 8 years 3/23/2018

Ed Waggoner 130 Iron Horse Drive 3

Retired IT professional; 2 year 

degree in Information 

Technology; currently serving on 

PDA as Vice-Chairman 4/17/2018

The appointments of Bill Sharp and Ed Waggoner expired 5/1/18.  
The positions were advertised on 3/29/18 & 4/5/18.  
Two applications were received.

Page 1 of 1

80



81



82



83



84



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
13. Authorization for Chairman to sign Agreement between Putnam County and Piedmont Water 

Company (SH) 

  

85



 

 

Putnam County and Piedmont Water Company wish to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding based on the following points: 

 

1. Putnam agrees to sell potable water obtained from the Sinclair Water Authority 

Plant to Piedmont for a wholesale price of $0.80 per 1000 gallons; 

2. The price shall not increase by more than two (2) percent, or the CPI index of 

inflation, whichever is less per annum during the initial term of the agreement; 

3. Piedmont agrees to purchase a minimum volume of 100,000 gallons per day, on a 

monthly average; 

4. Piedmont shall have the right to purchase up to 500,000 gallons per day, on a 

monthly average; 

5. Piedmont shall be responsible for all costs of construction, and shall own, all 

infrastructure necessary for the connection between the County waterline and 

existing Piedmont distribution system; 

6. The connection between Putnam and Piedmont shall be at the existing metered 

connection in the vicinity of the Rock Eagle Technology Park; 

7. The separate agreement between Putnam and Piedmont for provision of water 

services to Rock Eagle Technology Park and Putnam County High School shall 

be amended so as to be included under this agreement; 

8. Putnam shall invoice Piedmont on a monthly basis for the actual usage based on 

reading of a meter at the point of connection; 

9. Putnam reserves the right to engage a third party for billing and meter reading; 

10. Putnam and Piedmont agree to enter into a formal agreement to include the above 

points. 

86



STATE OF GEORGIA 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made effective as of _____________ ___, 2018, by and 

between Putnam County Board of Commissioners, on behalf of Putnam County, 

GA, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (hereinafter referenced as 

“Putnam”), and Piedmont Water Company, a Georgia Corporation (hereinafter 

referenced as “Piedmont”).  

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Putnam is authorized by O.C.G.A. § 36-1-26 to execute one or 

more contracts which specify the rates, fees, or other charges which will be 

charged and collected by the County for water utility services to be provided by 

the County to one or more of its utility customers; 

  

WHEREAS, Piedmont desires to purchase water from Putnam for use in its 

private water system and intends to install, construct, and maintain infrastructure 

necessary to obtain the same; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to establish the terms under which the sale 

and purchase of water shall take place.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Putnam agrees to sell and Piedmont agrees 

to purchase water pursuant to the terms contained within this Agreement. 

 

2. TERM. The initial term for this agreement shall be for 10 years, commencing 

upon the Effective Date of this Agreement.  At the end of the initial 10 year term, 

the Agreement shall automatically renew for one 10 year term, provided that 

either party may cancel the renewal term by providing written notice to the other 

party of an intention to do so at least one (1) year prior to the expiration of the 

initial term.   

 

3. PURCHASE PRICE. 

(a) Piedmont shall purchase water from Putnam at an initial rate of $0.80 per 1000 

gallons.  During the initial term of this Agreement, Putnam may elect to increase 

the purchase price once per calendar year up to 2% or the “Consumer Price Index 

for Urban Consumers” as published in January of each calendar year, whichever is 

87



less, of the then purchase price.  Such election shall be effective 90 days after 

written notice by Putnam to Piedmont of the increase.  Putnam shall invoice 

Piedmont on a monthly basis and shall have the authority to contract with or 

designate a third party to fulfill this term.  Following the initial term of this 

Agreement, the purchase price per 1,000 gallons of water shall be at a rate agreed 

to by the parties. 

 

(b) The Parties further agree to amend the separate agreement governing the 

delivery of water by Piedmont to the Tech Park and High School to include said 

volume of water exclusively under the pricing schedule provided in Section 3(a) 

above. 

 

4. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS. Piedmont shall be responsible for all capital 

improvements and infrastructure necessary to facilitate the delivery of water to 

Piedmont’s system, and shall own same.  Said infrastructure shall be connected to 

Putnam’s existing meter located at the Rock Eagle Technology Park.  Upon 

completion of such improvements, Piedmont shall provide written notice to 

Putnam of the same and shall designate a date for the initial purchase of water 

(hereinafter “Initial Service Date”).  Putnam agrees to act in good faith and 

provide such reasonable assistance and cooperation as Piedmont may request in 

connection with the installation of infrastructure, including obtaining necessary 

permits and rights-of-way.   

 

5. CAPACITY. Piedmont shall be entitled to purchase up to, but no more than, 

500,000 gallons of water daily, as determined by daily average over an individual 

monthly billing period.  Piedmont may be entitled to additional capacity by 

obtaining written consent from Putnam.  In the event Piedmont exceeds the daily 

capacity without written consent from Putnam, Piedmont shall make payment to 

Putnam for the overage in the amount of $3.00 per 1000 gallons over the daily 

capacity. 

 

6. MINIMUM PURCHASE. Upon the Initial Service Date, Piedmont shall be 

required to purchase a minimum of 100,000 gallons per day, as determined by 

daily average over an individual monthly billing period.  In the event Piedmont 

fails to purchase the minimum amount, Piedmont shall make payment to Putnam 

in an amount equal to the difference between Piedmont’s actual purchase and the 

purchase price had the minimum purchase term been met. 

 

7. METER AUDIT. Either party, at their own cost, shall have the right to request 

an audit of water sold pursuant to this agreement and shall have the right to 

conduct testing or to request calibration of any metering equipment to insure 

accuracy.  This right shall extend to any third party so designated by either party. 

 

88



8. INDEMNIFICATION. Piedmont agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 

Putnam from all claims, losses, expenses, fees including attorney fees, costs, and 

judgments that may be asserted against Putnam that result from the acts or 

omissions of Piedmont, Piedmont’s employees, if any, and Piedmont’s agents.  

Putnam agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Piedmont from all claims, losses, 

expenses, fees including attorney fees, costs, and judgments that may be asserted 

against Piedmont that result from the acts or omissions of Putnam, Putnam’s 

employees, if any, and Putnam’s agents. 

 

9. ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the event any party disputes 

the interpretation of the terms of the Agreement or moves to enforce any 

obligation there in, the parties shall submit the dispute to mediation before an 

agreed upon mediator.  In the event mediation is not successful in resolving any 

and all disputes, the parties shall submit the dispute to a panel of three arbitrators 

each of whom are member of good standing with the America Arbitration 

Association, one chosen by Putnam, one chosen by Piedmont, and a third chosen 

by the arbitrators selected by Putnam and Piedmont.  The parties agree to be 

bound by the determination of the panel. 

 

10. NOTICES. All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed delivered when delivered in person or deposited in 

the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 

IF for Putnam: 

 

Paul Van Haute 

County Manager, Putnam County 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

 

IF for Piedmont: 

 

Adam Shaifer 

__________________ 

__________________ 

 

 

Such address may be changed from time to time by either party by providing 

written notice to the other in the manner set forth above. 

 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 

the parties and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreement 

whether oral or written.  This Agreement supersedes any prior written or oral 

agreements between the parties. 

89



 

12. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be modified or amended if the 

amendment is made in writing and is signed by both parties. 

 

13. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be 

invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to 

be valid and enforceable.  If a court finds that any provision of this Agreement is 

invalid or unenforceable, but that by limiting such provision it would become 

valid and enforceable, then such provision shall be deemed to be written, 

construed, and enforced as so limited. 

 

14. WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHT. The failure of either party to 

enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or 

limitation of that party's right to subsequently enforce and compel strict 

compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 

 

15. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of Georgia.  

 

16. ASSIGNMENT. Piedmont agrees that it will not assign, sell, transfer, 

delegate or otherwise dispose of any rights or obligations under this Agreement 

without the prior written consent of Putnam.  Any purported assignment, transfer, 

or delegation shall be null and void.  Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement 

shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their 

respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns, and shall 

not benefit any person or entity other than those enumerated above. 

 

26. SIGNATORIES. This Agreement shall be signed on behalf of Putnam by 

Chairman Stephen Hersey, and on behalf of Putnam by Adam Shaifer and 

effective as of the date first above written. 

 

This Agreement is executed and agreed to by: 

 

_________________________  ___________________________ 

Stephen Hersey     Date 

Putnam County 

 

 

___________________________  ______________________________ 

Adam Shaifer      Date 

Piedmont Water    

 

90


	Top
	1. 20180515 BOC Welcome
	2. 20180515 BOC Invocation
	3. 20180515 BOC Pledge
	4. 20180515 BOC Teleworld Conditional Use
	Teleworld Recommendation.pdf
	TELEWORLD-LAMAR Conditional Use Request.pdf

	5. 20180515 BOC Mason Rezoning
	Mason Recommendation.pdf
	MASON Rezoning Request.pdf

	6. 20180515 BOC Covington Rezoning
	Covington Recommendation.pdf
	COVINGTON Rezoning Request.pdf

	7. 20180515 BOC Pettit Rezoning
	Pettit Recommendation.pdf
	PETTIT Rezoning Request.pdf

	8. 20180515 BOC Blount Rezoning
	Blount Recommendation.pdf
	BLOUNT Rezoning Request.pdf

	9. 20180515 BOC Public Comments
	10. 20180515 BOC Agenda Approval
	11. 20180515 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 05-04-18 BOC Minutes.pdf
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item 050418.pdf
	DRAFT 05-04-18 BOC Work Session Minutes.pdf

	12. 20180515 BOC PDA Appointments
	Chart of Applicants for Putnam Development Authority.pdf
	PDA Documents.pdf

	13. 20180515 BOC Piedmont Agreement
	MOU Putnam PWC 180225.pdf
	180426 Revised Piedmont-Putnam Water Purchase Agreement.pdf

	14. 20180515 BOC CM Report
	15. 20180515 BOC CA Report
	16. 20180515 BOC Comm Announcements
	17. 20180515 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

